Form 10-300 (July 1969)

2

Z

SEE

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

# NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

1	STATE:
	Wisconsin
	COUNTY:
ĺ	Iowa
	FOR NPS USE ONLY

			<u> </u>		LONE		
(Towns all america	1-4	1:1:14:-		ENTRY NUMBER	9 <sup>A</sup> T	E	
(1 ype all entres	s – complete app	ncable section	ns)	11.1.55.000	0 1 1/25	171	
1. NAME				<del>. بر</del>	<del></del>		
COMMON:				( all	in the second	l	
Pendarvis				(3) A			
AND/OR HISTORIC:				RECEI	VEN :		
				107 OCF. 12	3		
2. LOCATION				3E7 22	: 1970		
STREET AND NUMBER:				NATIO			
114 Shake Rag S	treet			NATIO			
CITY OR TOWN:				REGIS		1	
Mineral Point					(6/		
STATE		CODE	COUNTY:		01, 00	DE	
Wisconsin 5356	5	55	Iowa		04	9	
3. CLASSIFICATION							
CATEGORY		OWNERSHIP		STATUS	ACCESSIBL	E	
(Check One)	·	OWNERSHIP		314103	TO THE PUBI	-IC	
☐ District ☐ Building	☐ Public	Public Acquisit	ion:	▼ Occupied	Yes:		
XX Site Structure	XX Private	∭ In Pro		Unoccupied	X Restricted		
1	Both		Considered	<u>'</u>	Unrestricte	ed	
☐ Object			001.3140.04	Preservation work	□ No		
				in progress			
PRESENT USE (Check One or M	More as Appropriate)						
Agricultural G	overnment	] Park		Transportation	Comments		
Commercial In	dustrial 🗓	- Private Reside		(Other (Specify)		j	
	ilitary [	Religious	عيدم		,		
	-	-	*	ecialized			
☐ Entertainment X M	useum	] Scientific	_re	staurant			
4. OWNER OF PROPERTY							
OWNER'S NAME:	•					Σ	TS
Edgar Hellum and	Edgar Hellum and Robert M. Neal						
STREET AND NUMBER:						8	ATE:
114 Shake Rag St	reet					Wiscons	
CITY OR TOWN:			STATE:		CODE.	'n	1
Mineral Point			Wiscor	ein	55	7	
5. LOCATION OF LEGAL DESC			MEGCOL	1つ ヤ11			- 1
COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF	RIPTION		WISCOI	19711	1		- 1
		-	WISCOL	10.111			
Towa County Cour	DEEDS, ETC:		WISCOL	19711	1 33		000
Iowa County Cour	DEEDS, ETC:		WISCOL	1311		Iov	COUNT
	DEEDS, ETC:		WISCOL	13.11		Iowa	
	DEEDS, ETC:		STATE	13.11	CODE	70	
STREET AND NUMBER:	DEEDS, ETC:			13.11		70	
STREET AND NUMBER:	DEEDS, ETC:		STATE		CODE	owa	
CITY OR TOWN:  Dodgeville	thouse					70	
Dodgeville  6. REPRESENTATION IN EXIST	thouse		STATE		CODE	owa 1//	CNTY:
Dodgeville  6. REPRESENTATION IN EXIST	thouse		STATE		CODE	owa 1//	CNTY:
Dodgeville  6. REPRESENTATION IN EXIST  TITLE OF SURVEY:  Historic American	thouse		STATE	onsin	55	owa 1//	UNTY: ENT
Dodgeville  6. REPRESENTATION IN EXIST TITLE OF SURVEY:  Historic American Date of Survey: 1941	thouse ING SURVEYS	Survey	STATE	onsin	CODE	owa 7/./.55	UNTY: ENT
Dodgeville  6. REPRESENTATION IN EXIST TITLE OF SURVEY: Historic American Date of survey: 1941 Depository for survey re	thouse ING SURVEYS  Buildings S		STATE	onsin	55	owa 7/./.55	UNTY: ENT
Dodgeville  6. REPRESENTATION IN EXIST TITLE OF SURVEY: Historic American Date of Survey: 1941 Depository for survey re Library of Congre	thouse ING SURVEYS  Buildings S		STATE	onsin	55	owa 7/./.55	UNTY: ENT
Dodgeville  6. REPRESENTATION IN EXIST TITLE OF SURVEY: Historic American Date of survey: 1941 Depository for survey re	thouse ING SURVEYS  Buildings S		STATE	onsin	55	owa 7/./.55	UNITY: ENTRY NUMBER
Dodgeville  6. REPRESENTATION IN EXIST TITLE OF SURVEY: Historic American Date of Survey: 1941 Depository for survey re Library of Congre	thouse ING SURVEYS  Buildings S		STATE	onsin	55	owa 7/./.55	UNITY: ENTRY NUMBER
Dodgeville  6. REPRESENTATION IN EXIST TITLE OF SURVEY: Historic American Date of Survey: 1941 Depository for survey re Library of Congre	thouse ING SURVEYS  Buildings S		STATE	onsin	55	owa 7/./.55	UNITY: ENTRY NUMBER
Dodgeville  6. REPRESENTATION IN EXIST TITLE OF SURVEY: Historic Americal Date of Survey: 1941 DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RE Library of Congressions STREET AND NUMBER:	thouse ING SURVEYS  Buildings S		STATE Wisco	onsin	55	owa 71.1.55,0001 1	FOR NPS USE ONLY

MECEIVED A								
7. DESCRIBITION (1)								
0 13/0				(Chec	k One)			
NATERNATION /OF	Excellent 💃	CX Good	☐ Fair	☐ Dete	eriorated	Ruins	Unexposed	
REGISTE		(Check On	ie)			(Che	ck One)	
	X Altered		Unaltered			☐ Moved	Original Site	

Pendarvis is a site along the base of a bluff-like limestone outcrop in Mineral Point which made it possible for early Cornish miners to choose home-sites where they could quarry the stone for their houses from their own back yards. Three restored Cornish houses stand on the portion of the site which fronts on Shake Rag Street, with the houses facing the hillside on which the miners dug pits into the surface to obtain lead ore. All the houses are on their original locations and have been restored with the utmost care. Bedrock, which is an extension from the base of the quarry, serves as the foundation, and all three houses are set directly upon it. At the rear, gardens, walks and courtyards connect the three houses and provide outdoor resting places for the visitor. The first restoration, a one-story stone cottage, was named Pendarvis House; Pendarvis is now the name of the entire site.

Pendarvis House was built c. 1835. The name of the builder is unknown. is a small stone cottage with a gable roof shingled with wood shakes and has a chimney at each gable end. The style is that of the typical Cornish cottages the immigrants had built in their native land. The front is faced with carefully fitted native buff limestone laid coursed ashlar with minimal amounts of mortar; some blocks are fitted together so tightly that one cannot force a knife blade between them. Stone on the sides and back is laid random ashlar, much freer, with more copious use of mortar. Exterior restoration was done with as little alteration as possible, but water damage had been so great that the wall of one gable end had to be almost completely rebuilt. This was done with the same kind of craftsmanship as that of the original builder and with stone from the same quarry. The roof was reshingled with redwood shakes laid over heavy tarred felt. Enough original handsplit white pine shakes had remained to serve as patterns for the redwood replacements. 'Many of the windows were replaced and floors relaid. every possible case of repair or replacement throughout the restoration [of the three houses] we used materials of the same color, texture, and period."1

All walls are 18" to 20" thick. Where face stones are not that deep, the thickness is maintained by use of rubble filling. Originally the interiors of walls were plastered directly on the rubble, but water damage of long duration had caused cracks and discolorations that could not be repaired or corrected and maintained satisfactorily. For that reason wood and metal lath, or insulating board, were nailed to furring strips which had been fastened to wedges driven into the repaired wall, and plaster was then applied. Doors, window seats, and interior woodwork were replaced, where necessary, with native Wisconsin white pine.2

The interiors of Pendarvis House and the other two Cornish houses are furnished with antique period items obtained largely from the Mineral Point locality. "The general effect...is not that of the Cornish of the old country nor probably that of the early Cornish houses in this locality, but a blending of the old country with the pioneer Cornish dwellings, combining beauty with usefulness." Pendarvis House was put to adaptive use as a specialized restaurant serving only Cornish food, prepared from authentic old recipes, on tables set with "red cloths...of the early years, bone handled knives and forks, English ironstone dishes, old goblets and other

# UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR (1919) 1969) RECEIVED NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACE

L REGISTER	OF HISTORIC PLACE	Ξ
INVENTORY -	NOMINATION FORM	

(Continuation Sheet)

STATE	
Wisconsin	
COUNTY	
_ Iowa	
FOR NPS USE ONL	Υ
ENTRY NUMBER	DATE
11,455,0001	1/25/71

PENDARVIS

7. (add. 1)

001 8 1970

NATIONAL

Number Gil Srittles)

glassware."<sup>3</sup> Addition of a small wooden ell, built as a lean-to on approximately the north half of the back of the house, was necessary to provide a butlers kitchen from which to serve food.

The second Cornish house on the site is a two-story, gable roofed cottage, with a saltbox profile and a lean-to at the rear built into the rock hill-side. Like Pendarvis House, its front is "cut limestone laid with very small joints" and the sides and back are random ashlar. Restoration was performed with the same techniques, craftsmanship and materials as those used in restoration of Pendarvis House. In adaptive use, the first floor of this house serves as the visitor center and waiting room. Upstairs are the living quarters of the current owners and the kitchen in which the meals are prepared for serving in Pendarvis House.

The third Cornish house, which is the Pendarvis site's principal museum, is a handsome three-and-a-half story building with the first story of stone, surmounted by a two-and-a-half story log structure. It has a stone lean-to addition set into the rock hillside at the rear. Like the other two houses, this was also built c. 1835, but unlike the other two, all stone is laid random ashlar without the especially careful fitting and dressing of the cut face stones on the front side. The less formal treatment of the stonework in front is more harmonious with the use of logs for the upper stories, however. There is a large stone chimney built on the outside of the wall at the right (northeast) gable end, while chimneys in the other two houses are internal structures.

Over the years, the third house had undergone the most numerous alterations, although the original structure was intact with the exception of the chimney. A two-story addition had been built on in the mid-1890's, the log walls of the upper two-and-a-half stories had been covered with clapboard siding, the two fireplace openings had been closed, the chimney removed, and two windows had been made into doors and another window opening closed with rock.

In restortation, the building was returned to its original state. The addition was removed as was the clapboard covering of the walls. The closed window was reopened and those that had been made into doorways were restored as windows. The fireplaces were reopened also. The only major reconstruction necessary was that of replacing the chimney. The two owners rebuilt the stone chimney under the tutelage and close supervision of Charles Curtis, "an eighty-five-year-old stonecutter and mason who learned his trade in Cornwall and who for more than half a century had been practicing his art in this part of the state. He suggested, if not insisted, that we personally select and lay most of the rock in this chimney so that, as trained apprentices, we could later supervise or do our own rock work..." The reconstruction of the chimney, therefore, as well as all the necessary stonework—repairing,

Form 10-300a (July 1969)

### UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

### NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

(Contin	uation	Sheet)

STATE	
Wisconsin	
COUNTY	
Iowa	
FOR NPS USE ONL	Υ
ENTRY NUMBER	PATE /
111,55,0001	1/25/7

(Number all entries)

#### PENDARVIS

#### 7. (add. 2)

rebuilding, remortaring and pointing—for restoration of all three houses was done with the same Cornish methods as the original builders had used. Replacement rock was taken from the original quarry. The resulting restoration of the three Cornish houses of the Pendarvis complex is both authentic and remarkably well executed, with structural integrity maintained at the highest level.

DESCRIPTION OF BOUNDARIES OF HISTORIC SITE (see maps appended):

Bounded on the northeast by a private property, on the southeast by Shake Rag Street, on the southwest by Spruce Street, and on the northwest by a private property.

Neal, Robert M., <u>op</u>. <u>cit</u>., p. 398.





<sup>1.</sup> Neal, Robert M., "....Shake Rag's Cornish Houses," p. 397.

<sup>2.</sup> Ibid., p. 396.

<sup>3. &</sup>lt;u>Ibid</u>., p. 400.

<sup>4.</sup> Perrin, Richard, Historic Wisconsin Buildings, p. 86.

SIGNIFICANCE			
PERIOD (Check One or More as A	Appropriate)		
Pre-Columbian	I6th Century	18th Century	20th Century
☐ 15th Century	☐ 17th Century	🔀 19th Century	
SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applicable	e and Known) c. 18	35	
AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Che	ck One or More as Approp	riate)	,
Abor iginal	Education	☐ Political	Urban Planning
☐ Prehistoric	Engineering	Religion/Phi-	Ther (Specify)
☐ Historic	☐ Industry	losophy	RECEIVED
Agriculture	☐ Invention	Science	N NECENTED
X Architecture	Landscape	Sculpture	00. 8 1970
☐ Art	Architecture	X Social/Human-	
Commerce	Literature	it <b>a</b> rian	NATIONAL (0)
Communications	☐ Military	☐ Theater	REGISTE
Conservation	☐ Music	Transportation	0

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

At the time of establishment of the Wisconsin Territory in 1836, the "old lead region" of Southwest Wisconsin was the most populous part of the new territory. Lead had been discovered there sometime earlier, but it was the latter 1820's before some Cornish miners found that very rich deposits of ore lay not far beneath the surface of a hilly point of land that divides two branches of the Pecatonica River. This hill gave the name Mineral Point to the settlement that developed there.

Unemployed tin-miners who came to Mineral Point from Cornwall in southwest England, beginning in 1830, quickly saw that they could make this new settlement much like the villages of their homeland. There were wooded ravines and rolling moors, and limestone was abundantly available. Soon there grew up a community of little stone cottages, nestled against a protecting hill, known as Shake-Rag-under-the-hill, and later just as Shake Rag. The men, working on the eastern ridge with their windlasses and piles of lead ore, could look down about mealtime and see the housewives shaking a rag to tell them it was time to eat.

It was only natural that settlers who duplicated the homes they had left behind in the old country would also cling to the old customs and traditions even the food recipes they had known for generations. Therefore, a substantial number of these homes stood intact on Shake Rag a century after they were built, and stood as a challenge to Robert Neal and Edgar Hellum in 1935. Neal, a Mineral Point native of Cornish ancestry, and Hellum, who was visiting Mineral Point to seek building material, met, and finding that they had common interests in the old Cornish houses, undertook one of the most outstanding private historical preservation projects in the United States. Beginning with Pendarvis House, Neal and Hellum soon acquired and restored two others in the first phase of their project. As time went on, the project encompassed other Cornish cottages along Shake Rag Street and on Spruce Street which joins it.

The Cornish had been skilled stonemasons for centuries, and their cottages in Mineral Point comprise some of the finest stonework in Wisconsin, offering perhaps "the best opportunity to study the pioneer architecture of the state... 'These houses and their surroundings,' says John F. Kienitz, professor of art history in the University of Wisconsin, 'help us to understand the cultural backgrounds of Wisconsin. We have here a direct continuation of the medieval stone craftsmanship of England. It is not accident that makes the Cornish dwellings so attractive to the eye.

9. N	IAJOR	BIBLIOGE	RAPHICAL R	EFERENC	ES .								
	Neal, Robert M., "Pendarvis, Trelawny, and Polperro, Shake Rag's Cornish Houses," <u>Wisconsin Magazine of History</u> , 29(4):391-401, June 1946. Perrin, Richard W. E., <u>Historic Wisconsin Buildings</u> , Milwaukee Public Museum												
ı		Milwauk	tee, 1962	(Reprin	nted	from	Lo	ore), 8	6-87.				
P			ard W. E								ls. Ch	apter,	Amer.
		Institu	ite of Ar	chitects	s, Mi	Llwauk	ee	e, 1960	, 23.				
H	lo1me		l L., Side								lis.,	Madison	, 1949,
F	Fiedler, George, Mineral Point, A History, Pub. by The Mineral Point Histori								istori-				
		<u>cal Soc</u>	iety & tl	ne Iowa	Cour	ty De	mc	ocrat-T	ribun	e. Miner	al Pt	Wis.	1962.
10.	GEOGI	RAPHICAL	L DATA					<del></del>					
			AND LONGIT				O R	DEF	INING	DE AND LON THE CENTER OF LESS TH	POINT	OF A PROPI	
cc	ORNER	LA	TITUDE	LON	NGITUE	)E	"		LATITU	DE		LONGITUD	E
		Degrees Mi	nutes Seconds	Degrees M	linutes	Seconds				s Seconds		s Minutes	
	NW			°		_		N 42°	51	, 50 <b>.</b>	W 90	· 10 ·	21 -
	NE	۰	, ,			[ ]				na y Canthadd a'i San			
	SE sw		, .		,	-			,	11/1/17	1300		
AF	SW PPROXI	<u> </u>	REAGE OF NO	MINATED P	ROPER	TY: 4	. 6	<u>'</u>	<del></del>	^ 4	<del>'                                    </del>	\	
			AND COUNTIE						ATADE	COUNTRY	PHYPARI	ĖŠ	
ļ	ATE:					CODE		COUNTY	17	111	EU	1	CODE
							1			•	1970	17	
ST	ATE:					CODE	T	COUNTY:	17	NATION, REGIST			CODE
							7		Tin !	REGISTE	AL /c	<del>~</del> /	
ST	ATE:					CODE	T	COUNTY:	42	>	P. X	9	CODE
	-						1			MILIAN	16/		
sт	ATE:					CODE	I	COUNTY:		יוטרי			CODE
			-				black						
		PREPARE	D BY										
j	NAME AND TITLE:												
			derson, A	sst. Di	rect	or, H	ĹS	storic :	Sites	& Marke	rs Div		
	RGANIZ				~								
S	tate	Histor:	ical Soci	ety of	Wisc	onsin					9/	/28/70	
- 1													
		tate St	reet				STATE				CODE		
- 1							Τ		rin	52706			55
10 0	adiso TATE	I IAISON	OFFICER C	FRTIFICA	าเกม		Wisconsin 53706  NATIONAL REGISTER VERIFICATION				AMMINIOUNIONOGOGOGOGO		
****	)   N   L	LIMIDUIT	OFFICEN S	ER 11+ 1-21	115013		#		Allen	AL ALVIO.	EN THIS	H IVA . IV.	
	As the designated State Liaison Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the National Park Service. The recommended							Nationa	l Regis	-a	D.	mal	ly_
}		•	ance of this r					Chief, C		f Archeolog		storic Pres	effvation
		ational [	7 State	_	Local	$\Box$			JA	N 2 5 197	77		
	-	$\bigcap$	-A 1					Data	•••	•			
	Name _	Xamo	2) Most	3Ain	uth	<u> </u>		Date	·:				
		$\mathcal{O}$	lorton Sm	LTN				$\int$ .		4			1
	ı me	Directo State H	istorica	Societ	ty of	Wie		$\_\mathcal{W}$	Wid	in /	Vin	wer	5
				· Socie	iy oi	1123.				per of The N	lational .	Register /	
	Date '	October	6, 1970					Date		104 27	1970		

Form 10-300a (July 1969)

### UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

## NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

Wisconsin	
COUNTY	
Iowa	
FOR NPS USE ONLY	
ENTRY NUMBER D	ATE /
1511,55,0001 11.	251-1

(Continuation Sheet)

(Number all entries)

#### **PENDARVIS**

8. (add. 1)

They were built from the heart." 2

With the declining demand for lead and the lure of discoveries of gold in California occurring almost simultaneously, many of the Cornish miners left for the west near the end of the 1840's and by 1850 Mineral Point's role as a major center of lead-mining activity was past. Now, historically and architecturally, the excellently restored Cornish survivals of the Pendarvis complex are of prime significance as the best remaining and best preserved evidence of the lead-mining theme in Wisconsin's territorial period.

<sup>2.</sup> Holmes, Fred L., Side Roads, pp. 19-20.



<sup>1.</sup> Perrin, Richard, Historic Wisconsin Buildings, p. 86.